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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

0CT 19 2023

Mark C. McCartt, Clerk
U.S. DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,
V.

KEENAN DUKE LAMONT
BROWN 11,

a/k/a "Trigga,"

ISAAC EMILIANO LITTLEMAN-
ORTEGA,

ROYAL DALE JUAN BROWN,
a/k/a "Buck,"

Defendants.

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:

CaseNo. ¢ 3 CR339 GKF,

INDICTMENT

[COUNT ONE: 18 U.S.C. §§ 1151,
1153, and 2111 — Robbery in Indian
Country;

COUNT TWO: 18 U.S.C.

§ 924(c)(1)(A)(i1) — Carrying, Using,
and Brandishing a Firearm During
and in Relation to a Crime of
Violence;

COUNT THREE: 18 U.S.C.

§ 2119(1) — Carjacking;

COUNT FOUR: 18 U.S.C.

§ 924(c)(1)(A)(iii) — Carrying,
Using, Brandishing, and
Discharging a Firearm During and
in Relation to a Crime of Violence;
COUNT FIVE: 18 U.S.C. §§ 1151,
1153, 1201(a)(2), and 1201(d) -
Kidnapping in Indian Country;
Forfeiture Allegation: 18 U.S.C.

§ 924(d)(1), 18 U.S.C.

§ 981(a)(1)(C), 18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(5)
and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c) — Firearms,
Carjacking, and Kidnapping
Forfeiture]

COUNT ONE

[18 U.S.C. §§ 1151, 1153, and 2111]

On or about September 14, 2023, within Indian Country in the Northern District

of Oklahoma, the defendants, KEENAN DUKE LAMONT BROWN I, a/k/a

“I'rigga,” an Indian, and ISAAC EMILIANO LITTLEMAN-ORTEGA, an
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-Indian, aiding and abetting each other, took property of approximately $200 in value,
specifically, a cellular telephone, a wallet, and a purse, from the person and presence
of B.H., a person known to the Grand Jury, by force and violence, and by
intimidation, and the defendant, ROYAL DALE JUAN BROWN, a/k/a “Buck,”
willfully caused the act described above to be done, pursuant to Title 18, United
States Code, Section 2(b).

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1151, 1153, and 2111.
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COUNT TWO
[18 U.S.C. § 924(c)(1)(A)(ii)]

On or about September 14, 2023, in the Northern District of Oklahoma, the
defendants, KEENAN DUKE LAMONT BROWNII, a/k/a “Trigga,” ISAAC
EMILIANO LITTLEMAN-ORTEGA, and ROYAL DALE JUAN BROWN,
a/k/a “Buck,” aiding and abetting each other, knowingly carried, used, and
brandished a firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they
may be prosecuted in a court of the United States, that is, Robbery in Indian
Country, as set forth more fully in Count One of this Indictment.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(c)(1)(A)(i).
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COUNT THREE
[18 U.S.C. § 2119(1)]

On or about September 14, 2023, in the Northern District of Oklahoma, the
defendants, KEENAN DUKE LAMONT BROWN I, a/k/a “Trigga,” ISAAC
EMILIANO LITTLEMAN-ORTEGA, and ROYAL DALE JUAN BROWN,
a/k/a “Buck,” aiding and abetting each other, with the intent to cause death and
serious bodily harm, took a motor vehicle by force and violence, and by
intimidation, specifically, a 2005 Jeep Cherokee, that had been transported, shipped,
and received in interstate commerce from and in the presence of 1.V., a person
known to the Grand Jury.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2119(1).
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COUNT FOUR
[18 U.S.C. § 924(c)(1)(A)(iii)]

On or about September 14, 2023, in the Northern District of Oklahoma, the
defendants, KEENAN DUKE LAMONT BROWN II, a/k/a “Trigga,” ISAAC
EMILIANO LITTLEMAN-ORTEGA, and ROYAL DALE JUAN BROWN,
a/k/a “Buck,” aiding and abetting each other, knowingly carried, used, brandished,
and discharged a firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they
may be prosecuted in a court of the United States, that is, Carjacking, as set forth
more fully in Count Three of this Indictment.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(c)(1)(A)(ii1).



Case 4:23-cr-00339-GKF Document 25 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 10/19/23 Page 6 of 8

COUNT FIVE
[18 U.S.C. §§ 1151, 1153, 1201(a)(2), and 1201(d)]

On or about September 14, 2023, within Indian Country in the Northern District
of Oklahoma, the defendants, KEENAN DUKE LAMONT BROWN II, a/k/a
“Trigga,” an Indian, and ISAAC EMILIANO LITTLEMAN-ORTEGA, an
Indian, aiding and abetting each other, knowingly and unlawfully seized, confined,
inveigled, and held for ransom, reward, and otherwise, 1.V., a person known to the
Grand Jury, and the defendant, ROYAL DALE JUAN BROWN, a/k/a “Buck,”
willfully caused the act described above to be done, pursuant to Title 18, United
States Code, Section 2(b).

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1151, 1153, 1201(a)(2),

and 1201(d).
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATION
[18 U.S.C. § 924(d)(1), 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(C), 18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(5),
and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c)]

The allegations contained in this Indictment are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeitures pursuant to Title 18,
United States Code, Section 924(d)(1); Title 18, United States Code, Section
981(a)(1)(C); Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(5); and Title 28, United
States Code, Section 2461(c). -

Upon conviction of the offenses alleged in this Indictment, as a part of their
sentences, the defendants, KEENAN DUKE LAMONT BROWNII, a/k/a
“Trigga,” ISAAC EMILIANO LITTLEMAN-ORTEGA, and ROYAL DALE
JUAN BROWN, a/k/a “Buck,” shall forfeit to the United States any property
constituting, or derived from, or traceable to, the proceeds obtained, directly or
indirectly, as a result of such violations, any firearm and ammunition involved in or
used in the knowing commission of such offenses, and any property, real or personal,
that was used or intended to be used to commit or to facilitate the violation of federal
law. The property to be forfeited includes, but is not limited to:

FIREARMS AND AMMUNITION

1. A Glock, Model 33, .357 caliber pistol, serial number GHZ877,

2. Multiple rounds of SIG Sauer .357 caliber ammunition,;

3. A Canik, Model TP9 SF Elite, .9mm caliber pistol, serial number
T647218BHOS;

4. Multiple rounds of Sellier & Bellot 9mm ammunition;

7
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5. A Glock, Model 21, .45 caliber pistol, serial number BDM2596;

6. Multiple rounds of Winchester .45 caliber ammunition;

7. A Glock, Model 73, 9mm caliber pistol, serial number ZRY Y 886;

8.  Multiple rounds of Blazer .9mm caliber ammunition; and

9. Any ammunition or magazines not specified.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(d)(1); Title 18,

United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C); Title 18, United States Code, Section
982(a)(5); and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c).

CLINTON J. JOHNSON A TRUE BILL
United States Attorney

%% s/ Grand Jury Foreperson

JOS M. CARMEL Grand Jury Foreperson
Assistant United States Attorney




